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The Federal Trade Commission has today completed a wide-ranging investigation of 
alleged anticompetitive conduct by Google Inc. (“Google”).  We issue this Statement to explain 
the Commission’s unanimous decision to close the portion of its inve
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Google manipulated its search algorithms in order to demote vertical websites that competed 
against Google’s own vertical properties. 

 
II.  The Commission’s Investigation  

 
The Commission may intervene and challenge business practices if it has reason to 

believe that such practices violate Section 5’s prohibition on unfair methods of competition, and 
create a likelihood of significant injury to competition, including monopolization or attempted 
monopolization actionable under Section 2 of the Sherman Act.  To determine whether Google 
violated Section 5 with respect to these search bias allegations, the Commission considered 
whether Google manipulated its search algorithms and search results page in order to impede a 
competitive threat posed by vertical search engines.  
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vertical.  On the other hand, these changes to Google’s search algorithm could reasonably be 
viewed as improving the overall quality of Google’s search results because the first search page 
now presented the user with a greater diversity of websites.   
 

Product design is an important dimension of competition and condemning legitimate 
product improvements risks harming consumers.  Reasonable minds may differ as to the best 
way to design a search results page and the best way to allocate space among organic links, paid 
advertisements, and other features.  And reasonable search algorithms may differ as to how best 
to rank any given website.  Challenging Google’s product design decisions in this case would 
require the Commission – or a court – to second-guess a firm’s product design decisions where 
plausible procompetitive justifications have been offered, and where those justifications are 
supported by ample evidence.  Based on this evidence, we do not find Google’s business 
practices with respect to the claimed search bias to be, on balance, demonstrably anticompetitive, 
and do not at this time have reason to believe that these practices violate Section 5.2     

 
III.  Conclusion  

 
In sum, we find that the evidence presented at this time does not support the allegation 

that Google’s display of its own vertical content at or near the top of its search results page was a 
product design change undertaken without a legitimate business justification.  Rather, we 
conclude that Google’s display of its own content could plausibly be viewed as an improvement 
in the overall quality of Google’s search product.  Similarly, we have not found sufficient 
evidence that Google manipulates its search algorithms to unfairly disadvantage vertical websites 
that compete with Google-owned vertical properties.  Although at points in time various vertical 

                                                 
2 The Commission also investigated allegations that Google had unfairly “scraped,” or misappropriated, the content 
of certain competing websites, passed this content off as its own, and then threatened to delist these rivals entirely 
from Google’s search results when they protested the misappropriation of their content.  The Commission 
considered whether this conduct could have diminished the incentive of Google’s rivals to invest in bringing new 
and innovative content and services to the Internet in the future or reduced Google’s own incentive to innovate in the 
relevant markets, and if so whether this conduct was actionable as an unfair method of competition within the 
meaning of Section 5 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45.  Chairman Leibowitz, Commissioner Brill and Commissioner 
Ramirez found the record evidence to support strong concerns about Google’s conduct in this regard, and Google 
has committed to refrain from this conduct in the future.  In addition, the Commission investigated allegations that 
Google placed unreasonable restrictions on the ability of advertisers to simultaneously advertise on Google and 
competing search engines, or “multihome.”  The Commission considered whether these restrictions raised the cost 
of dealing with Google’s rivals for advertisers, particularly small businesses who might multihome less due to the 
restrictions, whether these effects were material, and if so whether this conduct was actionable as an unfair method 
of competition under Section 5.  Chairman Leibowitz and Commissioner Brill found the record evidence to support 
strong concerns about Google’s conduct in this regard, and Google has committed to refrain from this conduct in the 
future.   
 
While Commissioner Ramirez is pleased that Google has decided to change certain of its practices, she objects to the 
form of the commitments made by Google.   
 
Chairman Leibowitz and Commissioner Brill support the enforceable commitments made by Google.  In this case, 
the commitments made by Google are appropriate and consistent with past practice at the Commission.  See 
Statement of Commissioners Orson Swindle and Thomas B. 
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websites have experienced demotions, we find that this was a consequence of algorithm changes 
that also could plausibly be viewed as an improvement in the overall quality of Google’s search 
results. 

Although our careful review of the evidence in this matter supports our decision to close 
this investigation, we will remain vigilant and continue to monitor Google for conduct that may 
harm competition and consumers.  
 
 


